


     

 

ADDENDUM 02 TO BID DOCUMENTS 

LIVING SHORELINE DEMONSTRATION PROJECT 

(PO-148) 

 

The clarifications and revisions in this addendum supersede the requirements in the Bid 

Documents dated September 2015. The Successful bidder will be issued a complete revised 

set of plans and specifications. 

 

1. PRE-BID MEETING SIGN-IN SHEETS 

 

The Mandatory  Pre-Bid Conference Attendance Record is provided in Attachment A. 

 

2. RESPONSE TO CONTRACTOR QUESTIONS 

 

2.1. QUESTION: Would it be possible to obtain a copy of the attendee list for Tuesday's pre-

bid meeting for PO-0148, the Living Shoreline Demonstration Project. 

 

ANSWER: The Mandatory Pre-Bid Conference Attendance Record is provided in 

Attachment A. 

 

2.2. QUESTION: Will there be payment for stored materials once manufacturers are at 

critical milestones in their production? 

 

ANSWER: See Addendum 2 Item 3.7 below. 

 

2.3. QUESTION: Due to the sole sourcing nature of the manufactured product, could CPRA 

require the manufacturers to bond their portion of the work? 

 

ANSWER: Requirements for bid security, performance, and payment bonds for this 

Project are set forth in the Bid Documents, including but not limited to, Article 5.2 and 

Article 8 of the Instructions to Bidders.    

 

2.4. QUESTION: Can the manufacturers be forced to agree to liquidated damages if they 

don’t hit their schedule? 

 

ANSWER: The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for the performance of the 

work and the use and coordination of trades and subcontractors in accordance with all 

terms and conditions contained in the Bid Documents, including but not limited to, GP-

19, GP-20, and GP-31. 

 

2.5. QUESTION: Will the manufacturer’s pricing to the contractors be made public? 

 

ANSWER: The manufacturer has provided a statement of pricing that is available in 

Appendix G of the Bid Documents.  

 

2.6. QUESTION: Is it possible to provide pricing for the biologist on a weekly or daily 



     

 

basis? There is a chance that the biologist could be on site for the initial two weeks prior 

to beginning deployment and not be needed for the rest of the project. On the other hand 

he may be needed for the entire duration of deployment. 

 

ANSWER: Payment for all requirements of TS-6 will be as stated in TS-6.11. 

 

2.7. QUESTION: The permanent navigation aid. Pipe Pile coating. How much of the pipe is 

required to be coated? Does the inside wall of the pipe require coating as well? 

 

ANSWER: See Addendum 2 Items 3.18 and 3.19 below.  

 

2.8. QUESTION: Wanted to follow up on last Tuesday Meetings with finding a way to pay 

for stored deliverables.  LSS would have to commit $1.3-1.7 million in manufacturing 

and delivery of all the required WADs for Base bid and alternate bids many months 

before getting any return.  We would be at mercy of getting paid until deployment 

contractor got them in the water.  We are a small business and know that other 

contractors will be unable to participate because of this.  As we discussed.  We 

recommend that WADs and other products get inspected and accepted at storage facility 

or mobilization site awaiting deployment.  When accepted by your engineers, then we 

can invoice and receive a significant % of the total with the final percentage paid at 

completion of project.  This has been done for several similar projects we have done in 

the State.  Thanking you in advance for your consideration on this.   

 

ANSWER: See Addendum 2 Item 3.7 below. 

 

2.9. QUESTION: If there is not a provision added for stored materials, what is the receipt of 

funds expected to be in an approved billing cycle? 

 

ANSWER: See Addendum 2 Item 3.7 below. 

 

2.10. QUESTION: The stored materials billing cycle for contractors is going to be based on 

what timeline? Once a month, every two weeks? 

 

ANSWER: Request for payment for stored materials per Addendum 2 Item 3.7 below 

shall be part of contractors application for payment per GP-59. 

 

2.11. QUESTION: The Living Shoreline Demonstration Project mentions in the specs that 

the project requires a qualified biologist familiar with protected birds. I was wondering if 

you could provide contact information for a few such biologists. 

 

ANSWER: See TS-6.8.2.1 for requirements for qualified biologists. CPRA is precluded 

from recommending a specific biologist or firm.   
 

2.12. QUESTION: The spec for the navigation aids are the Tideland L-120 Self-contained 

2NM lantern, Tideland is strongly suggesting using the SolaMax-3 as it the latest version 

of the L-120.   

 



     

 

ANSWER: Navigation aid light shall remain as specified in TS-13 and Plan Sheet 29.  

 

2.13. QUESTION: We believe that specs listed for WAD were pulled from a form fabricators 

drawing that were submitted for discussion purposes but weights and wall thickness 

were pulled from that sample drawing.  We submitted official spec via a TS-8 submittal.  

Respectfully request that paragraph 10.5.2 be changed to reflect Unit weight:  Greater 

than or equal to 7200 lbs. and less than 9150 lbs. additional request 10.5.1.1 be changed 

to reflect a minimum 4” wall thickness as per submitted TS-8. I believe the numbers 

reflected were pulled from a sample engineering drawing of one of our fabricators.  We 

had no WAD weights presented in our submitted TS-8 Coastal Haven Spec. 

 

ANSWER: Please see Addendum 2 Items 3.11, 3.12, and 4.1.  

 

2.14. QUESTION: Can paragraph 7.9.2, under 7.9 Temporary Navigation Aid (page 76 of 

137) be clarified? Is the contractor responsible for obtaining a permit from the US Coast 

Guard and/or the US Army Corps of Engineers for all temporary dredging and disposal? 

 

ANSWER: Please see Addendum 2 Item 3.8.  

 

2.15. QUESTION: How will the state tax and local tax be applied or exempted for 

manufacturer's products, within the project? 

 

ANSWER: Taxes will be treated as stated under GP-34. 

 

2.16. QUESTION: How is the contractor supposed to determine which anchor to use. It is 

calling out that it’s up to the contractor to select an anchor that will hold up to 5,000 psi 

depending on soil conditions. Shouldn’t this be something the engineer should determine 

and spec out an anchor to be used? 

 

ANSWER: Anchors must meet performance requirements as specified in TS-12.8 and 

on Plan Sheet 21. Results from a geotechnical investigation of the site are provided in 

Appendix E. Details of proposed anchoring must be submitted to Engineer per TS-

12.2.1.10.  

 

2.17. QUESTION: Can the bottom be disturbed while setting reef blocks? Using a marsh 

excavator to set these units. 

 

ANSWER: The water bottom shall not be disturbed during access to the work area, other 

than that shown on the Plans. See TS-3.2, and for more detail, see Appendix F, 

Louisiana Coastal Use Permit condition 11.a. 

 
 

2.18. QUESTION: The Geotextile Fabric ( Table 1 ) has the Geogrid properties and the 

Geogrid ( Table 2 ) has the properties for the Geotextile.  

 

ANSWER: See Addendum 2 Item 3.9. 
 



     

 

2.19.  QUESTION: I have searched for a Geotextile that will meet the 15% Open area and 

have not been able to find one. Do you have an example of a product that will meet all of 

the properties in your spec? Also neither one of the tables list the test methods used for 

each property.  
 

ANSWER: See Addendum 2 Item 3.9. 

 

2.20. QUESTION: Please clarify if the determination to include or delete the performance of 

Alternate Bid Items will be made at the time of contract award. 

 

ANSWER: 2. The Contractor will be notified of the accepted Alternate Bid Items when 

the Contract is awarded 

 

2.21. QUESTION: Please allow payment for offsite materials.  It seems the contract has 

provided ample owner assurance through the requirements to provide Payment & 

Performance Bonds as well as including a 5% retainage clause. 

 

ANSWER: Request for payment for stored materials per Addendum 2 Item 3.7 below 

shall be part of contractors application for payment per GP-59. 

 

2.22. QUESTION: The stated no work distances basically encompass the entire landside area 

between Lake Eloi and Eloi Bay which is adjacent to the Base Bid jobsite.  This results 

in over 500 acres of area that would need to be patrolled twice daily whether or not the 

contractor is working.  Will marsh buggies, air boats, mud boats or other equipment be 

allowed to traverse the land area adjacent to the Base and Alternate jobsites in order to 

perform the required patrolling? 

 

ANSWER: No. 

 

 

3. REVISIONS TO THE GENERAL PROVISIONS, SPECIAL PROVISIONS, AND 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

 

Provision/Specification language modifications are bolded and inclusion and/or revision are 

shown in italics; deletions are show in strikethrough. 

 

3.1. SP-6. ADDRESSES FOR DOCUMENT DELIVERY – the contact information for the 

CPRA Field Engineer shall be changed to the following: 

 
CPRA Field Engineer 

David Chambers, PE 

2045 Lakeshore Drive, CERM Bldg, Suite 309 

New Orleans, LA 70122 

Phone: (504) 280-4069 

Fax: (504) 280-4066 

E-mail: David.Chambers@la.gov 

 



     

 

3.2. SP-4. MILESTONES – the specification has been revised as follows (note: only rows 

with changes are shown in addendum): 

 

Milestone Location or Recipient Date Due Specification 

Project Schedule Engineer 

14 days prior to Pre-

construction 

conference; updated 

and submitted at each 

Progress Meeting 

GP-9 and     

SP-5.6 

 

3.3. SP-5. DELIVERABLES, 5.7.2, has been revised as follows: 

 

5.7.2  Progress Schedule as specified in GP-9 and SP-5.6; 

 

3.4. SP-5. DELIVERABLES, 5.8.2, has been revised as follows: 

 

5.8.2  Progress Schedule as specified in GP-9 and SP-5.6; 

 

3.5. SP-5. DELIVERABLES, 5.12.4, has been revised as follows  (note: only rows with 

changes are shown in addendum): 

5.12.4 The following table is a summary of submittals required of the Contractor as part 

of this section and other sections of these Specifications:  

Table 1 Summary of Submittals 

Submittal 
Location or 

Recipient 
Date Due Specification 

Progress Schedule Engineer 
14 days prior to the Pre-

Construction Conference 

GP-9 and     

SP-5.6 

Work Plan and 

Schedule Updates 
Engineer Pre-Construction Conference 

GP-9 and, 

SP-5.6, SP-7 

Progress Schedule Engineer 

During Construction; with 

every bi-weekly progress 

meeting 

GP-9 and    

SP-5.6 

 

3.6. SP-7. WORK PLAN SUPPLEMENTAL, 7.8, has been modified as follows 

 

7.8 Construction schedule per GP-9 and SP-5.6; 

 

3.7. Add SP-28, as follow: 

 

SP-28 PAYMENT FOR STORED MATERIALS 

 

28.1 - General:  

If approved by the Owner, payments may be made for stored material, limited to 



     

 

manufactured artificial reef units, including Oysterbreak Units, WAD Units, Reef Ball 

Units, and ReefBLK Units, that will be incorporated into the project and which represent a 

significant portion of the project costs.  Such material shall be stored on the project site or, 

with prior approval by the Owner, in a dedicated stockpile located at a site outside of the 

designated project site. Payments for stored material will be considered only for materials 

anticipated to be stored for periods in excess of 30 calendar days. All stored materials shall 

meet the requirements of the plans and specifications and the Owner reserves the right to 

inspect stored materials. Payment for stored materials does not constitute acceptance by 

the Owner. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to protect the material from damage 

while in storage.   

 

28.2 - Request and Payment:  

Payment for stored materials will be based on the invoice price for the materials. The 

amounts advanced on stored materials will be recovered by the Owner through deductions 

made on payments as the materials are incorporated into the work. The quantity of 

material for payment shall not exceed sixty five percent (65%) of the total bid quantity for 

each artificial reef Bid Item required to complete the project (base and any awarded 

alternates). 

 

Payment for stored materials shall be requested by the Contractor in writing with their 

monthly application for payment per GP-59 and the following shall also be furnished to 

the Owner:   

 

(1) A copy of the invoices from supplier or manufacturer verifying the cost and quantity of 

material; and   
 

(2) If the proposed storage is located on private property, a copy of the lease or agreement 

granting the Contractor permission to store materials on that site, including permission 

granting the Owner and Resident Project Representative right of entry to the property; and   
 

 (3)  An acknowledgement from the Contractor of his continuing risk of loss and written 

notice from the Contractor’s surety indicating consent to payment for stored materials.  

 

Within 30 calendar days after payment by the Owner, the contractor shall submit a 

certified copy of invoices from the supplier for each item for which payment has been 

made. All such invoices submitted shall state the amount received by the supplier as 

payment in full for the materials. If this certification of payment is not presented within 

the 30-day period, the advanced payment will be deducted from future progress payments.  

  

All submittals shall be made in accordance with GP-41 and SP-5. 

 

28.3 - Ownership: 

Ownership of stored materials for which payment has been made shall not transfer to the 

Owner until such materials are incorporated into the work and the Owner has accepted the 

completed work. Payments issued by the Owner for stored materials pursuant to this 

Provision shall not release the Contractor from the responsibility for any portion thereto 

nor shall such payments relieve the Contractor from any other obligation contained in this 



     

 

Contract.   

 

3.8. TS-7 ACCESS AND FLOATATION CHANNELS, 7.9 Temporary Navigation Aids – 

paragraph 7.9.2 has been revised as follows: 

 
7.9.2 The Contractor shall obtain a permit from the U.S. Coast Guard and/or the US Army Corps 

of Engineers for all temporary navigation aids required for temporary dredging and temporary 

disposal, or navigation aid markers to be placed in the water prior to construction in the vicinity 

of the temporary disposal site and other works for the duration (and at any point during the 

performance) of the construction work. 

 

3.9. TS-8 GEOTEXTILE AND GEOGRID, 8.5.4 Material – the specification has been 

revised as follows: 

 
8.5.4 Material shall meet the physical property shown in Table 1 and Table 2. 

Table 1 – Physical Requirements of Geogrid Geotextile Fabric 

Property Test Units 
Values -
Machine 
Direction 

Values - Cross 
Machine Direction 

True 1% Tensile Modulus in Use (MD) ASTM D-6637 
kN/m 

(lb/ft) 
410 (28,100) 420 (28,780) 

Junction Strength (MD) ASTM D-7737 
kN/m 
(lb/ft) 

21.5 (1,474) 21.5 (1,474) 

Flexural Stiffness 
ASTM D-1388 

 (Option A)  
mg-cm 750,000 

Torsional Stiffness 
USACE-  Torsional 

Rigidity 

kg-

cm/deg 
6.0 

Resistance to Installation Damage ASTM D-5818 %GP 71 

Resistance to Long Term Degradation EPA 9090 % 98 

Ultraviolet Stability (Retained Strength 
@ 500 hours) 

ASTM D-4355 % 98 

 

Table 2 – Physical Requirements of Geogrid Geotextile Fabric 

Property Test Units 
Values -
Machine 
Direction 

Values - Cross 
Machine 
Direction 

Puncture Strength  ASTM D-6241 kN (lbs) ≥ 0.47 (105) 

Trapezoidal Tear ASTM D-4533 kN (lbs)  ≥ 0.51 (115) ≥ 0.33 (75) 

Percent Open Area USACE-02215 % ≤ 15 

Apparent Opening Size (AOS) ASTM D-4751 US Sieve ≤ 40 

Permittivity ASTM D-4491 Sec-1 ≤ 2.1 

Ultraviolet Stability (Retained Strength 

@ 500 hours) 
ASTM D-4355 % ≥ 90 

 

3.10. TS-9 OYSTERBREAK UNITS, 9.4.1 Manufacturer Qualifications – the specification 

has been revised as follows: 

 



     

 

Mr. Mike Turley 

Wayfarer Environmental Technologies, LLC 

PO Box 11937, New Iberia, LA 70563 

Phone: (225) 916-6382 

mike@wayfarertech.com 

http://www.wayfarertech.com/ 

 

3.11. TS-10 COASTAL HAVEN WAVE ATTENUATION DEVICES (WAD), 10.5.2.1 – 

the specification has been revised as follows: 

 

10.5.1.1 WAD units are constructed of 5,000 psi marine grade concrete reinforced with 

fibermesh, shall have at least three (3) solid walls, approximately 6.0 4.0 inches 

thick. WAD walls shall be either smooth or corrugated as shown on the Plans. 

Walls on the corrugated WADs shall be horizontally corrugated on one face of 

the WAD and vertically corrugated on back two side walls, as shown on Plans. 

Walls are to be tapered with lower portion of the WAD®s having an 

approximate 11.0 foot dimension from projected point to projected point (9.5 

foot actual base length), rising 5.0 feet in height to a 4.55 foot table. WADs 

shall have an open bottom and an enclosed top wall with an opening. Side walls 

shall have triangular tapered openings. WAD units are to be fabricated as 

detailed on the Plans. 

 

3.12. TS-10 COASTAL HAVEN WAVE ATTENUATION DEVICES (WAD), 10.5.2.1 – 

the specification has been revised as follows: 

 

10.5.2.1 Unit Weight: greater than or equal to 8,000 7,200 lbs and less than 9,150 lbs. 

 

3.13. TS-11 REEF BALL UNITS, 11.5.1.3 – the specification has been revised as follows: 

 

11.5.1.3 Two hole configurations shall be used. Type 1 will consist of the 

manufacturer’s standard Reef Ball hole pattern utilizing up to 22 holes per 

Reef Ball, or per manufacturer recommendations and Engineer’s approval. 

Hole size and location shall be set per manufacturer’s instructions. Type 2 will 

consist of a Reef Ball hole pattern utilizing 4 holes which should be spaced 

approximately mid-unit high and approximately equally around the unit 

perimeter. 

 

3.14. TS-11 REEF BALL UNITS, 11.5.2.1 – the specification has been revised as follows: 

 

11.5.2.1 Unit Weight: greater than or equal to 4,000 3,500 lbs and not to exceed 8,000 

lbs. 

 

3.15. TS-12 REEFBLK UNITS, 12.3.1 Manufacturer Qualifications – the specification has 

been revised as follows: 

 

12.3.1 Manufacturer Qualifications: Manufacturer shall be Coastal Environments, Inc 

(CEI) or an approved equal. Engineer must approve equivalent manufacturer 72 



     

 

hours prior to bid date. CEI contact information: 

 

3.16. TS-12 REEFBLK UNITS, 12.7.2 – the specification has been revised as follows: 

 
12.7.2 Aggregate shall be #57 #4 crushed limestone. 

 

3.17. TS-12 REEFBLK UNITS, 12.19.1 – the specification has been revised as follows: 

 

12.19.1 Reef Ball ReefBLK Units will be accepted by the Owner based on the in-place 

condition. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to deliver and install the ReefBLK 

Units in an undamaged state. 
 

3.18.  TS-16 COATINGS, 16.9.1.2 – the specification has been revised as follows: 

 

16.9.1.2 All surfaces of the round piles and fabrications shall be coated with the coating 

system specified herein. Piles do not require coating on the inside. 

 

3.19. TS-16 COATINGS, the following paragraph has been added: 

  

16.9.1.3  Coating is required to an elevation, at a minimum, 5 ft below the mudline 

for the installed pile.  
 

4. REVISIONS TO THE PLANS 

 

4.1. Sheet 22 – WAD UNIT DETAILS: Wall thickness on Section A modified to 4” thick 

wall, typical. Revisions are included in Attachment B. 

 

4.2. Sheet 28 – OYSTERBREAK LAYOUT: Section A is mirrored to show two pegs of the 

top Oysterbreak units facing seaward to match Detail 1, and Detail 3 is modified to show 

revised Oysterbreak spacings. Revisions are included in Attachment B. 

  



     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment A 
Mandatory Pre-Bid Conference Attendance Record 

  























     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment B 
Plan Revisions 

 






